
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
July 5, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Cliff Eckert 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Board Vice President Tim Lipinski 
at 6:32 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 
p.m.) 


(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the items on the Consent Calendar with the exception of Item III-D (Res. 18-09, nominating Director 
Holmer for Re-election to LAFCO), which was removed for discussion.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 7, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence (None.) 
 
 D. (Removed for discussion) 
 
III-D. (6:34 p.m.)  Approval of Resolution 18-09, nominating and supporting Director 


Richard Holmer's Re-election to LAFCO.  The GM introduced this item.  Discussion 


 1







ensued.  The second "Whereas" of the Resolution 18-09 was amended to read " . . . 
Richard Holmer has been a member of LAFCO for two years . . . "  (amended portion 
italicized).  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 18-09, Nominating and 
Supporting Richard Holmer for LAFCO, as amended.  Director Schaap seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0.   


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:38 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Cliff Eckert.  Discussion ensued.  Further public comment was 
made by Mr. Eckert.  Further discussion ensued. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:52 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:52 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort project - Water Supply 


Modeling progress.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Public comment was made by Cliff Eckert.  No formal action was taken. 


 
 
V-B. (7:10 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re:  District vision and dental insurance changes.  
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 


moved to adopt Resolution 18-10, Approving the Form and Authorizing the Execution of 
a Memorandum of Understanding and Authorizing Participation in the SDRMA Health 
Benefits Program, subject to review by legal counsel.  Director Holmer seconded,  Motion 
carried 4-0.   


 
V-C. (7:24 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Payment to SDRMA for legal expense.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved to 
approve payment of outstanding invoice.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0. 


 
V-D. (7:35 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2017-18.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued. 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:04 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River Flow 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. 2018 CIP 
7. Water Tax 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Small Claims Court Action 
10. Monte Rio Bridge 
11. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued.   
 
 


 2







 3


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:19 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:19 p.m.) 
 
At 8:19 p.m. Vice President Lipinski announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 
8:20 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:31 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property at 15370 River Road (APN 070-120-018)  
 Agency negotiator Steve Mack  
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Mark Miller. 
 Direction was given to Staff. 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:32 p.m.) 
 
1. Frivolous claims 
2. Guernewood Park Resort 
3. Actual vs. Budgeted - 4Q 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:38 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:52 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:04 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:19 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:19 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


August 2, 2018, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 5, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
D. CSDA Board Election: Authorizing the General Manager to vote for Candidate 


Robert Silano 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort project  (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-11, Authorizing the General Manager to 


Approve an Agreement with Mark Miller Regarding Use of Property at 15370 
River Road, Guerneville, for District Generator (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re 2017-18 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations and 


Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Frivolous Claims Protection. (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Rejection of AT&T proposed cell tower facilities at 14156 


Sunset Ave, Guerneville (10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-12, Ordering an Election to Be Held and 


Requesting Consolidation with the November 6, 2018 General Election (15 min.) 
 
G. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-13, Overruling Protests and 


Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge (10 min) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 


 A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957- Public Employee  
   Performance Evaluation  
 Title: General Manager  


 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 2







 
 


ADJOURN 


 3







 4


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO VOTE FOR ROBERT 
SILANO FOR THE CSDA BAY AREA BOARD ELECTION  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the General Manager to vote for Robert Silano or 
give direction to vote for a different candidate.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Special District Association is requesting that the District vote for Seat A 
of the Board of Directors by August 10.  The candidates and their qualifications are 
listed in the attachments.  The incumbent for this position is Robert Silano, he seems 
like a qualified candidate, and barring different direction fro the Board, we will submit 
the District vote for him.   
 
  









































		Item III-D -CSDA Election

		Item III-D.1 - CSDA Candidate packet






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE MODELLING 
RESULTS  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the progress on computer modeling the Guernewood Park Resort request for 
water service from the District and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort (Resort) is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 
rooms and a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and 
Hulburt Creek in Guernewood Park.   Coastland Engineering is developing a model to 
determine whether the District's Guerneville System can supply water to the Resort 
without impacting existing District operations.   
 
As discussed last month, the modeling results appeared to show that the District can 
meet the ordinary water supply demand for the Project but the District has 
insufficient storage for the fireflow requirements.  This is a similar statement from 
what we have believed about this project for some time (since before I came here); 
this modeling has refined that amount.  In the model run done last month, the 
District needs additional storage of approximately 530,000 gallons.     
 
On July 19 District and Coastland Engineering staff met with Guernewood Park 
Resort representatives to discuss the model results.  It turns out that the fireflow 
requirements given to the modelers were based on a worst case construction 
situation - the least firesafe construction possible (if that's the correct terminology).  
The Project proponents have given Coastland the fireflow requirements for more 
firesafe construction methods and, running the model, those methods show a 
reduced storage requirement in the 176,000 gallon or 70,000 gallon ranges to no 
additional storage needed.   It appears, the Project proponents will need to 
determine their construction methods to determine how much, if any additional 
storage, is needed. 
 
I have agreed to produce a conditional will serve letter based on Coastland's latest 
modeling results.   
 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 18-11 AUTHORIZ ING EXECUTION OF 
LEASE FOR 15370 RIVER ROAD  FOR BACKUP GENERATOR LOCATION 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 18-11 which authorizes the General 
Manager to execute a lease with Mark Miller, owner of  the parcel at 15370 River Road, 
Gueneville, for the purpose of formalizing the location of the backup generator for the El 
Bonita Well Field, and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The cost of the twenty year lease is approximately $10,429 or 


$521.45 per year.  
 


DISCUSSION: 
 
The District's backup generator for the El Bonita Well Field has been located at 
15370 River Road since the mid 1990''s on the Old River Road side of the parcel.  
This well field provides all the water for the Guerneville System and backup power 
generation is needed nearly every time power to this area fails.  The location 
includes a power connection to the El Bonita Well Field which goes under River Road 
and also traverses the parcel underground.  The District has no formal agreement to 
use this location for this purpose; prior owners have either agreed to the District 
locating the backup generator there or have not expressed an opinion.   
 
The current owner, Mark Miller, has expressed a desire to have a formal lease and to 
receive payment for the lease in the form of a water connection to the District.  The 
current capacity charge for new connections to the District is $6,529 and the 2018 
CIP which will be going down Old River Road has a unit cost for a water connection 
to the new main of $3900.  In our discussions Mr. Miller has agreed to a 20 year 
lease.  Exhibit A is the current state of the proposed lease which Mr. Miller is 
currently reviewing.   
 
Having a secure location for the backup generator for the El Bonita Well Field is 
essential.  The District's use of the part of the parcel it uses disrupts the use of that 
parcel and it is reasonable for the parcel owner to have a formal agreement with 
some compensation.  The amount agreed to in the proposed lease averages $521.45 
over 20 years.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 18-11 which authorizes the General 
Manager to execute the proposed lease (shown as Exhibit A) in substantially similar 
form.   
  







Resolution No. 18-11 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER 


TO EXECUTE A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH MARK MILLER FOR A 
BACKUP GENERATOR SITE FOR THE EL BONITA WELLFIELD  


  
 


WHEREAS, the District has a well field at the El Bonita site that requires a backup 
generator and that generator needs to be located out of the normal floodzone and flood 
way; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has located the backup generator at 15370 River Road, 
Guerneville, across River Road from the El Bonita Well Field; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current owner of 15370 River Road wishes a formal agreement for the 
location of the generator and for payment wants a connection of his parcel at 15370 
River Road to the District's water system; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is essential that the District has a secure location for the needed backup 
generator for the El Bonita Well Field; and  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the connection to the District's water system is approximately 
$10,429 (capacity charge and costs of the physical connection) and Mr. Miller has 
agreed that that amount is adequate for a twenty (20) year lease.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District authorizes the General Manager to execute a twenty (20) year 
lease for the location of the El Bonita backup generator in substantially the same form 
as presented in Exhibit A in return for that parcel to have the District connection fees 
waived.   
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
2, 2018, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 







 


LEASE AGREEMENT 
SM Draft 7-20-2018 


 
 
This Lease Agreement (“Agreement”) is made on __________, 20__, by and between  
Mark Miller (“Lessor”), and Sweetwater Springs Water District, a county water district 
duly formed and organized under the California County Water District Law (“Lessee”). 
Lessor and Lessee are referred to collectively as the “Parties” and individually as a 
“Party.” 


RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Lessor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property located at 15370 
River Road in Sonoma County, California,  APN 070-120-018 and as further depicted in 
Exhibit A (“Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Lessee desires to use a portion of the Property for the   operation and 
maintenance of its El Bonita emergency generator facility (“Facility”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Said Facility includes a section of land within the parcel along Old River 
Road for location of the Sweetwater Springs Water District El Bonita emergency 
generator, a power connection near the location of the emergency generator, and a power 
line from the power connection which traverses the property underground in the direction 
of the El Bonita Well Field; and   
 
WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee desire to execute a lease agreement to permit Lessee to 
operate the Facility on the Property pursuant to the terms and conditions herein.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth in 
this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 
 


1. Grant of Lease.  Lessor leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Lessor 
the Property on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 2. Initial and Renewal Term.   This Agreement  shall be for a term of 
twenty (20) years beginning on ____________________ (the “Commencement Date”), 
unless earlier terminated pursuant to Section 3.  This Agreement  may be renewed or 
extended for twenty (20) additional years on such terms as may be agreed upon by Lessor 
and Lessee.  Rent for the renewal term shall be agreed upon no later than ninety__ (90) 
days prior to the end of the initial term.  
 


3. Rent.  Lessor shall receive from the Sweetwater Springs Water District a 
water connection and Water District Capacity Charge payment valued at approximately 
Ten Thousand Four Hundred Twenty-Nine Dollars ($10,429) as the full rent for the 
duration of the Term.    


 







 


4. Use.  Lessee may use the Property for the construction, operation, 
maintenance, demolition, reconstruction, restoration or replacement of the Facility and 
access and uses incidental thereto.  Lessee’s use of the Property shall be in full 
compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, 
codes, and specifications.   
 
  


5. Governmental Approvals. Lessor shall fully cooperate with Lessee’s 
efforts to obtain and maintain in effect any and all necessary governmental approvals.  
Lessee shall perform all other acts and pay all reasonable expenses necessary to obtain 
any approvals deemed necessary by Lessee.  Lessor agrees not to oppose any requests for 
such approvals that are otherwise in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, and specifications and agrees to execute in a 
timely manner any documentation related to such approvals.  
 


6. Indemnification and Insurance.  Except to the extent of Lessor’s sole 
negligence or willful misconduct, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee 
hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, protect, defend (with counsel reasonably 
acceptable to Lessor) Lessor and Lessor’s employees, agents, contractors, consultants, 
and volunteers, from and against any and all claims, causes of action, liabilities, losses, 
costs, and damages, arising out of or related to any act, omission, or neglect of Lessee or 
its officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants, and contractors, or arising from or 
related to Lessee’s use of or activities on or about the Property or construction, 
maintenance, repair or operation of improvements at the Property.   
 


7. Title to and Ownership of Improvements. Title to and ownership of all 
improvements erected, constructed or installed by Lessee shall remain with Lessee. 
Lessee, upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, shall, within one hundred and 
eighty (180) days, remove all above-ground improvements, fixtures and personal 
property erected, constructed or installed on the Property by Lessee and restore the 
Property to its original above-grade condition, reasonable wear and tear or other 
conditions beyond Lessee’s control excepted. 
 


8. Quiet Possession. Lessor promises that so long as Lessee performs its 
obligations under this Agreement,  Lessee shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and 
enjoy the Property, and the Lessor shall not act in any manner which would interfere with 
or disrupt Lessee's business or frustrate Lessee’s use of the Property. Lessor warrants that 
Lessor has the full power and authority to enter into and execute this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding the above, Lessor shall have access to the Property twenty-four hours 
per day, 7 days per week, in order to inspect the premises. 


 
9. Access and Utilities. Lessee, at Lessee’s expense, shall have the right to 


install utilities and to improve any existing utilities on the Property (including, without 
limitation, the installation of emergency power generators).  Lessee shall be solely 
responsible for the safe and proper use and operation of any such utilities. 
  







 


 10. Assignment Prohibited. A Party may not assign all or any part of its 
interest in this Agreement  or in the Property without the prior written consent of the 
other Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
 
   
 
 11. Notices. All notices must be in writing and shall be valid upon receipt 
when delivered by hand, by nationally recognized courier service, signed receipt 
requested, or by First Class United States mail, certified, return receipt requested, 
addressed as follows: 
  
To Lessee: Sweetwater Springs Water District 
  P.O. Box 48 
  Guerneville, CA 95446 
 
 
 
To Lessor: Mark Miller 
  [address] 
 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or if mailed, three (3) 
days after deposit in the mail.  Either Party may at any time change its address for notices 
by giving written notice of such change to the other Party in the manner provided in this 
Section 14. 
 
 12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  Any legal action to enforce any provision of this Agreement  shall 
only be brought in the Superior Court of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 


13.  Amendment, Renewal, or Extension. 
 


 This  Agreement  may be amended, renewed, or extended, only by mutual written 
agreement of Lessor and Lessee. 
 


14. Attorneys’ Fees. 


 Should any legal action be brought by either Party for breach of this Agreement  
or to enforce or interpret any provisions herein, the prevailing party to such action shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and such other costs as may be fixed 
by the Court. 
 


15 Entire Lease Agreement. 
 
 This Agreement  represents the entire agreement between the Parties  and any oral 
statement or representation made to either Party by the other Party shall not be binding.  
This Agreement  may not be amended unless both Parties hereto execute a written 
amendment. 







 


 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Sweetwater Springs Water District, has authorized the 


execution of this Agreement by its General Manager by Resolution adopted by its Board 
of Directors on _____________, 2018, and the Parties have duly executed this Agreement.  


 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS  LESSOR, MARK MILLER   
WATER DISTRICT   
 
 
By: ____________________________________       By:  _____________________________ 
       Stephen Mack, General Manger   


 __________________________ 
 


 
 
Attest:        
 
__________________________________ 
Julie Kenny, Board Secretary 


  
 


Approved as to form:      
 


_________________________________    
Robin Donoghue, General Counsel    
    
 







 


EXHIBIT A.  Description of Real Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
2986186.1  





		Item V-B - Mark Miller Lease Agreement

		Item V-B.1 - RES 18-11 Mark Miller Agreement

		Item V-B.2 - Mark Miller Lease Agreement






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU JUNE 30, 
2018 (100%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 4th quarter -- end of fiscal year -- actual revenues and 
expenses as compared to budgeted.    In FY 2017-18, budgeted operating income 
was $8,178.  (Typically, net operating income is budgeted to be approximately 
$0, as any excess budgeted is transferred to our Capital Improvement Revenue 
Fund (CIRF).) 
 
Our actual income in FY 2017-18 is $108,488, mostly due to higher than 
budgeted revenues.  More details follow in the discussion below. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
FY 2017-18 Revenue ended the year $89,266 (3.6%) more than 
budgeted.  
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at 1.9% ($44,741.49) more 
than budgeted.  Our customers used 5.5% more water this year than last and 
7.2% more than FY 2015-16, which was our lowest usage ever.   
 
Non-operating revenue exceeded budgeted amounts by $44,524.53.  Most of this 
($36,424) is attributable to FEMA reimbursements for the El Bonita vault seals 
and other flood related expenses.  Construction Services Upgrades revenue also 
significantly exceeded budgeted amounts, by $9,506.   
 
FY 2017-18 Expenditures ended the year $11,044 (0.6%) less than 
budgeted.  







Actual vs, Budgeted thru June 30, 2018 2 
August 2, 2018 


 
Expenses break down into three categories:  Salaries & Benefits, Services 
& Supplies, and System/Equipment.   
 
Salaries & Benefits came in at $10,398.47 more than budgeted.  This 
was due to an extra, unbudgeted payment in the sum of $22,000 towards 
our PERS unfunded liability.  Offsetting this extra payment were savings in 
Wages and Salaries, which came in $27,747 underbudget, due to two 
employees who were on unpaid temporary disability leave for a portion of 
the year. 
 
Service and Supplies came in $69,225.32 under budget.  Notably, the 
Maintenance/Repair of facilities finished the year $47,188 under budget.  
This is due in part to a trend in recent years to increasing in-house 
construction expenditures as straight system repairs decrease. 
 
System/Equipment Upgrades were $39,233 more than budgeted.  At 
the very end of the fiscal year, the Canyon 4 Tank was relined at a cost of 
$21,732, the last of a number of tank improvements done this year. 
 
Other notable line items for this year are below: 
 
Health/Dental insurance: $16,320 more than budgeted 
Claims (Waller litigation): $14,570 more than budgeted 
Treatment System expenses: $13,406 less than budgeted 
Governmental fees: $14,300 less than budgeted 
Chemicals: $6,521 less than budgeted 
Legal costs: $8,435 less than budgeted 
Gas: $4,633 less than budgeted 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 4Q Capital Budget (Table 2) shows the Capital Budget at the end of the year.    
The Capital Budget came in mostly as expected: carryover funds paid for the 
completion of the 2017 CIP, the 2018 CIP was budgeted for the 2018 fiscal year 
and will be funded bond funds that will be acquired in FY 2019 at the end of the 
project, and the receipt and expenditure of funds to prepare and run a computer 
model Guerneville System to determine the Guernewood Park Resort water 
supply needs.     
 
Actual Net Capital Funding (Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + Capital 
Interest - Total Debt Payments) was $517,972, approximately $170,000 more 
than budgeted.  This is largely due to Net Operating Revenue coming in higher 
than budgeted.  
 







Actual vs, Budgeted thru June 30, 2018 3 
August 2, 2018 


FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 


Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 4th 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 4th Quarter.  
Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances and also the funds 
at PARS.  At the end of the year, Total District Reserves were $2,314,663 which is 
$280,020 less than budgeted.  This is mostly due to the funding from the USDA 
bond coming in FY 19; we expect this bond to refund upfront District expenses for 
the 2108 CIP.      
 
The funds listed in District Policy Reserves in Table 3 are different from the budgeted 
amounts in part because we are getting ready to pay for 2018 CIP expenditures.    
The District has ended the fiscal year in good shape - ready to fund the 2018 CIP 
with the expected amount of reserves and able to fund the 2019 CIP which is 
replacement of the green sand filter at the Monte Rio Treatment Facility.   







FY 2017-18 
Actual


2017-18 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense  
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,550,404 1,528,520 21,884 101.43%
4031.11· Current Charges 597,461 575,358 22,103 103.84%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 279,369 278,615 754 100.27%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 0 0 0 0.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 2,427,235 2,382,493 44,742 101.88% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,427,235 2,382,493 44,742 101.88%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
1700 · Interest 8,161 8,000 161 102.01%  


4500 · Unrealized Gain on PARS Investment 945 0 945 100.0%
3600 · Construction New Services 8,235 7,000 1,235 117.64%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 11,506 2,000 9,506 575.31%


4032 · Rent 96,470 98,600 -2,130 97.84%  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 0 2,500 -2,500 0.0%


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 2,384 1,500 884 158.91%  


4445 · Grant (FEMA) Proceeds 36,424 0 36,424 100.0%


In the 2Q and 3Q  the District received FEMA 
reimbursement for El Bonita vault seals and other 
flood related expenses incurred last year.  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 164,125 119,600 44,525 137.23%


Total Income 2,591,359 2,502,093 89,266 103.57%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
777,596 801,720 -24,124 96.99%


This line item came in under budget for the year due 
to two employees on temporary, unpaid disability 
leave for a portion of the 3rd and 4th Q. *


5912 · Overtime 28,256 33,200 -4,944 85.11%  


5916 · On-Call Pay 34,590 33,100 1,490 104.5%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,931 37,100 -169 99.55%  


Total Salary 877,373 905,120 -27,747 96.93%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p 820 0 820 100.0%
5920 · Retirement net employee share 64,100 65,100 -1,000 98.46%  


5920.4 · Retirement - UL
112,003 90,000 22,003 124.45%


In the 4Q, a budgeted extra payment on our UL in 
the sum of of $54,000 was made, plus an 
unbudgeted UL payment of $22,000. *


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 15,062 15,300 -238 98.44%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 186,420 170,100 16,320 109.59% This line item was underbudgeted for the year. *
5931 · Retiree Health 7,698 7,680 18 100.23%


In the 1Q, annual contribution to CERBT ($3,000) 
made.  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 47,224 47,000 224 100.48%
In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 
paid for the year.  


Total Benefits 433,325 395,180 38,145 109.65%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,310,698 1,300,300 10,398 100.8%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 2,016 2,350 -334 85.78%
6040-C · Cell Phones 4,076 4,050 26 100.65%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 470 620 -150 75.79%
6040-T · Telephones 16,671 17,000 -329 98.06%  


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2018 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 3







FY 2017-18 
Actual


2017-18 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2018 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Communications 23,233 24,020 -787 96.72%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 36,181 33,000 3,181 109.64%
(In the 1Q, paid for the year. Underbudgeted this 
year.)


Total Insurances 36,181 33,000 3,181 109.64%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 11,743 12,500 -757 93.95%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 7,148 6,400 748 111.69%  


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 18,891 18,900 -9 99.95%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 6,373 8,800 -2,427 72.42%
6100 · SCADA system 3,201 5,000 -1,799 64.01%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 25,369 50,000 -24,631 50.74%
Overbudgeted.  Costs in this category seem to be 
shifting more to In-House Construction. *


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 31,594 45,000 -13,406 70.21%
A well rehab was budgeted for this fiscal year but not 
completed. *


6143 · Generator Maintenance 6,836 3,200 3,636 213.63%


This line item was underbudgeted for the year.  In the
3Q unplanned generator maintenance issues 
cropped up.


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 73,372 112,000 -38,628 65.51%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 11,082 10,800 282 102.61%  


6303 · Claims 16,070 1,500 14,570 1,071.33% The Waller litigation costs left this line item 
underbudgeted. *


6593 · Governmental Fees 4,700 19,000 -14,300 24.74% Overbudgeted.  Greater than anticipated savings due 
to a State reduction in rates for low income areas. *


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 31,852 31,300 552 101.77%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 15,744 16,000 -256 98.4%  


6430 · Printing Expense 7,753 7,500 253 103.37%
In the 1Q, most printed supplies were purchased for 
the year.


6461 · Office Supplies 4,111 4,100 11 100.28%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 553 1,100 -547 50.26%


6890 · Computers/Software 1,560 3,000 -1,440 51.99%  


6579 · Furniture 844 500 344 168.71%
In the 3Q we purchased a new file cabinet for SM 
($564) and new shelving for JK ($279)


Total Office Expense 30,564 32,200 -1,636 94.92%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 11,979 18,500 -6,521 64.75% Overbudgeted *
6880 · Tools and Equipment 5,676 5,000 676 113.52%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 1,262 1,200 62 105.19%
Total Operating Supplies 18,917 24,700 -5,783 76.59%


Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 1,283 3,000 -1,717 42.76%
The District discontinued weekly laundry service of 
our carpets and rags. *


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 11,611 14,000 -2,389 82.94%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 17,000 18,000 -1,000 94.44%  


6610 · Legal 11,565 20,000 -8,435 57.83% Overbudgeted. *
6630 · Audit/Accounting 38,832 35,500 3,332 109.39%  


Total Professional Services 80,291 90,500 -10,209 88.72%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,409 3,300 -1,891 42.69%  


 Page 2 of 3







FY 2017-18 
Actual


2017-18 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2018 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6840 · Building & Warehouse 29,672 29,790 -118 99.6% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 31,081 33,090 -2,009 93.93%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 473 2,650 -2,177 17.85%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 18,367 23,000 -4,633 79.86%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,428 6,400 -972 84.81%


Total Transportation & Travel 24,268 32,050 -7,782 75.72%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 1,320 1,500 -180 88.0%
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,694 1,500 194 112.91% In the 1Q, t-shirts were purchased for the year.


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%  


Total Uniforms 3,014 3,240 -226 93.01%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 97,851 95,000 2,851 103.0%  


7321 · Propane 2,820 3,000 -180 93.99%  


Total Utilities 100,670 98,000 2,670 102.73%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 472,335 533,000 -60,665 88.62%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,783,034 1,833,300 -50,266 97.26%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 60,723 22,000 38,723 276.01%
In the 4th Q, an unbudgeted tank liner was installed 
at Canyon 4 ($21,732). *


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 500 0 500 100.0%
In FY 2018-19, the District will be moving to a cloud-
based phone server.


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%
  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 61,223 22,000 39,223 278.29%


Total Expense 1,844,257 1,855,300 -11,043 99.41%


Net Ordinary Income 747,103 646,793 100,310 115.51%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 278,615 278,615 0 100.0%  


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 320,000 0 100.0%  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
638,615 638,615 0 100.0%


  
FYE OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) 108,488 8,178


 Page 3 of 3







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2017-18 Capital Program Budget Variances as of June 30, 2018 (100%)


FY 17-18
ACTUAL 


(4Q)
FY 2017-18 


Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 15,764 27,000 -11,236 58.4%


Annual Assessment (County) 726,080 710,000 16,080 102.3% 1st installment 


Prior Year Assessment 22,709 40,000 -17,291 56.8%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 278,615 278,615 0 100.0%


Interest 17,075 8,000 9,075 213.4%


0 0 0 0.0%  


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 320,000 320,000 0 100.0%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


0 1,463,000 -1,463,000 0.0%


41,800 41,800


0 0 0 0.0%


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 1,447,042 2,871,615 -1,424,573 50.4%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 65,783 64,284 1,499 102.3%


Cap One Revenue Bond 564,344 566,508 -2,164 99.6%


Total Bond Payments 630,127 630,792 -665 99.9%


State Loan Payments 146,618 146,438 180 100.1%


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0%


Total Debt Payments 1,010,758 1,011,244 -486 100.0% Sum of all debt payments


2017 CIP 764,857 764,857 na
Carryover expenses from FY17 Phase 1 (total 
$732,000)


2018 CIP 36,823 1,463,000 -1,426,177 2.5% Design Expenses 


39,284 39,284 Funded by Project Proponent


In-House Construction Projects 25,775 25,000 775 103.1%


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 1,877,498 2,499,244 -621,746 75.1%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -430,456  372,371 -802,827 -115.6%


Net Capital Funding 517,972 348,077 169,895 148.8%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


Guernewood Park Modeling Expense


Funds from Reserves


USDA Bond Proceeds


Transfers to CIRF from Operations for 
prior year surplus


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


Guernewood Park Modeling Funds







FY 17-18


Actual 4Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 123,508       274,995     (151,486.97)   
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 96,475           458,325     (361,850.00)   


corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 
0300), 


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 102,315       252,811     (150,496.00)   


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000     -                


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 773,243 1,236,131 (462,888)      Includes PARS below


TOTAL Reserves 2,314,663 2,594,683 (280,020)        


Reserves Above (below) Policy (Funds) 1,541,419 1,415,968 125,451
Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


Reserves Above (below) Policy (Budget) 1,078,532


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 266,474$       (334,700)      601,174
OPERATIONS (0100) 123,508$       458,325       -334,817
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 96,475$         274,995       -178,520
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) 102,315$     502,811       -400,496
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 75,982$         104,315       -28,333
BUILDING (0200) 10,850$         213,850       -203,000
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)


791,250$       
802,112       -10,862  Made both payments 


FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) 500,000$       64,284         435,716  Available for 2018 CIP 


STATE LOANS (0900) 146,863$       146,438       425  Made both payments 


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000) -$            146,739       -146,739 Including this in other reserves.


PARS* 200,945$     Added to Table


2,314,663$  2,232,430  82,233
* June Amount


DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (2Q)
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (4Q) 17-18 Budget
Difference 


Actual-FY18 Comments







 


County Balances FY 2017-18 and Reserves Above Policy
 


$31,495.21 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,683.88 $572,035.18 $ 0.00 $146,740.72 $510,829.00 $801,357.29 $2,641,613.14 $1,405,978.14


NAME


CERBT PARS
(part of Oper Res)


Operations + 
15% Cash 


Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
(part of Oper Res)


Operating 
Policy 


Reserve (25% 


less Bldg Fund and 


PARS)***


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


CIP 2018


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


Guernewood 
Project 


Escrow Funds


State Loan 
58340


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


****


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


Policy 
Reserve: 


(calc. FYE 2017)


$1,235,635 


Fund 76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76759 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0900
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $31,495.21 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,683.88 $567,080.17 $0.00 $146,740.72 $510,829.00 $684,350.69 $2,519,651.53 $1,284,016.53


FP2-Aug $31,495.21 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,485.12 $392,439.15 $0.00 $146,740.72 $502,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,885,137.75 $649,502.75


FP3-Sept $32,680.36 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,485.12 $371,767.49 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,591,157.08 $355,522.08


FP4-Oct $32,680.36 $200,000.00 $352,003.38 $850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $60,102.21 $172,213.90 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,281,062.89 $245,427.89


FP5-Nov $32,680.36 $200,929.02 $387,003.38 $10,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $83,224.11 $17,841.65 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,194,812.54 $160,106.56


FP6-Dec $37,200.62 $202,050.96 $337,003.38 $10,850.00 $247,475.00 $0.00 $82,006.97 $461,189.05 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,747,461.80 $713,877.76


FP7-Jan $37,200.95 $205,681.35 $318,822.41 $10,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $76,769.97 $518,617.71 $41,800.00 $220,172.43 $302,315.00 $116,184.09 $1,852,006.61 $780,252.96


FP8-Feb $37,200.95 $199,486.15 $318,822.41 $10,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $76,769.97 $518,617.71 $41,581.25 $220,172.43 $302,315.00 $3,000.09 $1,738,603.86 $660,873.76


FP9-Mar $36,686.95 $198,523.64 $408,822.41 $10,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $76,769.97 $505,664.56 $35,743.75 $146,863.42 $302,315.00 $3,000.09 $1,736,504.20 $663,649.09


FP10-Apr $36,686.95 $198,418.90 $82,838.11 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $500,000.00 $76,769.97 $214,994.86 $26,143.75 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $791,250.09 $2,048,500.20 $985,140.35


FP11-May $36,686.95 $201,076.61 $122,838.11 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $500,000.00 $75,982.08 $214,994.86 $18,486.90 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $791,250.09 $2,080,055.46 $1,027,010.17


FP12-Jun $37,077.06 $200,945.35 $122,838.11 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $500,000.00 $75,982.08 $249,248.86 $18,486.90 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $791,250.09 $2,114,309.46 $1,061,132.91


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$37,077.06 $200,945.35 $123,508.03 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $500,000.00 $75,982.08 $266,473.85 $ 18,486.90 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $791,250.09 $2,132,204.37 $1,079,027.82


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


Reserves Above 
Policy 


(PARS + COUNTY - 
GUERNEWOOD PK 


ESCROW)


** Available Funds:  76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds)  (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves
**** $200,000 loaned from Cap Policy Reserve (1100) to Capital Improvements (0600) in Sept 2017.


TOTAL at 
COUNTY 


 





		Item V-C - Actual v Budgeted - 4Q 2017-18

		Item V-C.1 - Budget variances as of 06-30-2018 (100%)

		Sheet1



		Item V-C.2 - Cap Bud variances for 17-18  (100%)

		Table 2. FY18Q4



		Item V-C.2 - Fund Balances for 17-18  (100%)

		Table 3



		Item V-C.3 - County Acctg Funds FY 17-18

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROTECTION OF DISTRICT FROM 
FRIVOLOUS CLAIMS 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss with staff, including legal counsel, the issue of 
protecting the District against frivolous claims while keeping legal costs at a reasonable 
level, and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board has asked for this item to be placed on the agenda so that there can be 
an open question and answer discussion on how to protect the District's legal 
interest while keeping the cost of legal services at a reasonable level.    








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: AT&T Proposed Cell Tower Facilities at 14156 Sunset Ave., 
Guerneville 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the General Manager to write a letter to AT&T 
rejecting their request to use the Highland Treatment Facility as a cell tower location, 
and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Several years ago the District went through a process to add a cell tower to the 
Highland Treatment Facility.  The District receive a lot of negative feedback on that 
proposal and the Board decided to not agree to placing a cell tower at the site.  
Recently, AT&T has renewed their request to place the cell tower at the site.  I 
informed them of the history and my belief that the District had no interest in cell 
towers at this time.  The project proponents want an official letter from the District 
stating we are not interested.  I recommend that the Board direct the General 
Manager to write, sign and deliver an appropriate letter confirming our disinterest in 
having the Highland Treatment Facility as the location of a cell tower.    
 
  









		Item V-E - Rejection of ATT Cell Tower Request

		Item V-E.1 - Letter dated 7-2-2018 from Complete Wireless Consulting






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date : August 2, 2018 Subject: District Election – November, 2018 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 18-12, Ordering an Election to be Held and Requesting Consolidation with the 
November 6, 2018, General Election, and limiting the Statement of Qualifications to no more than 200 
words with the costs to be paid by the candidate in advance to the District Secretary. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The estimated cost to the District is $1,500.  Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) 
Statement of Qualifications at a not-to-exceed cost of $654 based on a 200-word, English-only 
statement.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


The terms of Directors Schaap, Robb-Wilder and Holmer will expire in December.  The nomination 
period for interested candidates in these open Board seats -- including incumbents -- is July 16 – 
August 10, 2018.  All candidates must file a Declaration of Candidacy, a Ballot Designation 
Worksheet, and a Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests (covering the 12 months prior to the 
filing date) with the Registrar of Voters.  The first two forms are available at the Registrar of Voters.  
The Form 700 Statement is available online at http://www.fppc.ca.gov/. 
 
Candidates may also file an optional Statement of Qualifications at their own expense.  Get this form 
from the District, and payment for the Statement must be paid in the form of a "not-to-exceed" check to 
the District, with the receipt filed at the same time as other nomination documents.  This year, the "not 
to exceed" amount is $654 for a 200-word English-only statement, but may be as low as $164 
depending on how many statements are submitted for an individual office. 
 
The recommended action is consistent with past Board policy on the election.  
 









		Item V-F - November elections

		The estimated cost to the District is $1,500.  Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) Statement of Qualifications at a not-to-exceed cost of $654 based on a 200-word, English-only statement. 



		Item V-F.1 - RES 18-12 Ordering an Election to Be Held and Requesting Consolidation






   
    


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 


TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 2, 2018 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING RE ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE  


 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 Open Public Hearing 
 Take public comment 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Adopt Resolution 18-13, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report 


on the annual Flat Charge at the same level ($198 per connection) 
as last year 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The FY 2017-18 assessment generated approximately $748,789 in annual 
revenues.  This does not include $15,764 received this year for capacity 
charges on new services constructed, nor does it include interest earned 
on assessment revenue ($17,074) in FY 2017-18. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


On an annual basis since July 1992, the District has imposed a flat charge 
for each separate water connection to a property.  Currently set at $198 
per water connection, the funds collected are largely used to pay for debt 
service on the original purchase of the water system and facility upgrades.  
Resolution 18-13 keeps the Flat Charge at $198 per connection.    
 
This annual charge is added to the tax bill and collected by the County, 
along with all other county property taxes and assessments.   


 
 







Resolution No. 18-13 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT OVERRULING PROTESTS AND CONFIRMING 


REPORT ON ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE FOR SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 


DISTRICT. 
 


 WHEREAS, this Board did on July 14, 1992, adopt Ordinance No. 8 which 
established an annual flat charge, and authorized collection of such charge on the tax 
roll of the County of Sonoma, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared a written report containing a description of 
each parcel of real property receiving services and facilities from the District and the 
amount of the flat charge for each parcel for the 2017-18 fiscal year, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  said written report has been on file with the Clerk of said District, 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  notice appointing the time and place of hearing protests on said 
report was duly given in the manner provided by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications were publicly 
read at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
 1. That all objections to and protests against said report, if any, have been 
heard by this Board and that said objections and protests be, and each of them is hereby 
overruled. 
 
 2. That said report be, and it is hereby adopted in full with the revisions to 
each charge as specified therein, and that said charges shall be collected on the tax roll 
of the County of Sonoma, in the manner provided by law. 
 
 3. That the Clerk of this District be hereby directed to file with the County 
Auditor of Sonoma County, on or before the 10th day of August, 2018, a copy of said 
report, upon which shall be endorsed over her signature a statement that the report has 
been adopted by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT. 
 
 4. That the County Auditor of Sonoma County, shall upon receipt of said 
report, enter the amount of the charges against the respective lots or parcels as they 
appear on the assessment roll. 
 


***************************** 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
2, 2018, by the following vote. 







 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-G - Public Hearing, Approve Res 18-13 re Annual Flat Charge

		Meeting Date: August 2, 2018



		Item V-G.1 RES 18-13 Annual Flat Charges






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 2, 2018   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in June were 20,255 units (46.5 AF, (Monte Rio 
cycle) and production was 64.7 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were higher and 
production was lower this month  (45.0 AF and 68.0 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage continues on a dropping trend.   Figure 1 shows sales, production and % 
difference for the two separate systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In June we had 16 total leaks and spent 96 man-hours on them.   That's more leaks 


and man-hours compared to the prior month and compared to June one year ago (9 and 
34).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leaks line as well.     


   
3. Russian River Flow:  Flow is at the normal to dry year mid-summer flow levels at shown 


in Figure 3.   Flow is hovering around 100 cfs and will likely stay down there for the 
summer; maybe a little lower as we get deeper into summer.         


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Going slow; my understanding is that Open Space may 


approve this for funding in September.     
 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  There was a meeting with the interested parties (Supervisor 


Hopkins, MRRPD, Open Space, Regional Parks and me in July.  Everyone is interested in 
moving this project forward and a followup meeting is scheduled for August.    


  
6. 2018 CIP:  The project is underway, Piazza is working on Foothill Blvd services at the time 


of this writing. 
 
7. Water Tax:  The opposition letter was sent to Senator McGuire and Assemblymember 


Wood.   
 
8. In-House Construction Projects: Two in-house construction projects were reported for 


July: destroyed inactive meter box on Bohemian Hwy (2 man-hours), one inch service 
upgrade on Wright Drive (58.5 man-hours).   


 
9. Small Claims Court Action: This case was continued until August 15.   
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
August 2, 2018 
 
10. Monte Rio Wastewater Community Advisory Group: I have been appointed to the 


Monte Rio Wastewater Community Advisory Group.  There are a total of 10 members; Rich 
Holmer is also a member.   


 
11.   Gantt Chart:  No action items or milestones are in the Gantt Chart for August; it does 


show that the CIP should be underway and it is, as mentioned above.         
 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
August 2, 2018 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2018 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-16 Average, Updated July 25, 2018


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


c
fs


)


2013


2015


09-16 Avg


2017


2018


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 FY20+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2018 CIP Phase Award of Contract


        2018 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


        2019 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: August 2, 2018  



